
	

	

 
 
 
July 6, 2017 
 
	
TO:  Saint Paul Heritage Preservation Commission, Attn: George Gause 
 
FROM: Exeter Group LLC (“Exeter”), on behalf of property owner Flats Venture LLC 

(“Appellant”) 
 
RE: Appeal of Order and Decision of Saint Paul Heritage Preservation Commission (“HPC”) 

Denying the Application (the “Denial”) for a new storefront for the University Avenue 
retail spaces at C&E Flats (”Project”) 

 
 2390-2400 University Avenue West & 735 Raymond Avenue, Saint Paul MN 
 
Chair and Members of the Saint Paul Heritage Preservation Commission: 
 
Exeter respectfully requests that the Saint Paul City Council reverse the decision of the HPC denying the 
proposed storefront replacement for the Project.   For the reasons outlined below, the decision should be 
overturned and the replacement of the storefront allowed to proceed. The appeal consists of this writing, 
its attachments and other materials submitted to the City Council on or after this date (the “Appeal”).  
 

1. The Denial obstructs the Appellant’s ability to comply with applicable building codes and lease 
its space. 
 

2. The Denial does not follow the University-Raymond Commercial Historic District Guidelines 
that allow for storefront replacement when the existing is too deteriorated to save and the changes 
do not impact the defining characteristics of the building or the local historic district.  The 
Appellant’s proposal is well within this guidance.  

	
3. The Denial is inconsistent with HPC’s previous approval of entire window and frame 

replacement along the Project’s Raymond Avenue façade where the windows and frames were 
also too deteriorated to save. 

	
4. The Denial and the HPC Staff Report dated June 22, 2017 (the “Report”) recommending denial 

contain misleading and inaccurate information that was prejudicial to the Appellant.  The Denial 
and the Staff Report falsely claim that Appellant’s proposed new storefront will “adversely affect 
the Program for the Preservation and architectural control of the University-Raymond 
Commercial District.”  This is entirely untrue as the Program is intended to guide change per the 
University-Raymond Commercial Historic District Guidelines, not prevent it.  The Denial and the 
Staff Report prevent change by not following the guidelines and ignoring basic facts presented by 
the Appellant as to the severely deteriorated condition of the existing storefront, the need for the 
new storefront to be installed with its own integral structure and the need for the new storefront to 
be compliant with applicable building codes. 

	
5. The Denial repeatedly ignores basic facts presented by the Appellant in pre-Application meetings, 

in the Application and at the June 22nd public hearing in front of the full HPC.   The methods and 
interpretations for storefront replacement suggested by HPC in the Denial and in subsequent  
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emails from HPC staff, have been demonstrated by Exeter and its qualified architects and 
contractors to be either non-code compliant, physically impossible or both. The new storefronts 
are an integral structural unit and to attempt to piece together nominal amounts of severely 
deteriorated old material with code compliant new material will compromise both the physical 
integrity and the energy efficiency of storefront system in addition to leaving an esthetic that will 
be an awkward hodge-podge of old and new. 

	
6. During the Appellant’s pre-Application process with HPC staff, which the Appellant attempted to 

commence back in December 2016, HPC staff was repeatedly either slow to respond or entirely 
non-responsive. HPC staff has also been misleading in its communication and recommendations 
to Exeter as to what is allowable for storefront replacement.  Exeter is required to seek HPC 
approval for certain elements of the Project per Saint Paul City Council’s grant of appeal for the 
Project to Exeter on August 15, 2015 and memorialized in Resolution No. 15-1824.  The non-
responsive and misleading communication from HPC staff has resulted in costly and time-
consuming delays and been prejudicial to the Appellant.  This has also resulted in costly and 
time-consuming delays for an existing Saint Paul restaurant operator that desires to occupy the 
commercial space subject to installation of new, code compliant storefronts.   

	
7. The Application for new, code-compliant storefronts has broad public support from residents, 

building owners, business owners and community organizations, including the Midway Chamber 
of Commerce.  For the June 22nd public hearing, 75 pieces of public testimony were submitted 
and 71 were in favor of the Application.  Exeter expects to receive further support from the Saint 
Anthony Park Community Council, which has been actively advocating for more restaurants in 
the neighborhood for several years. 

	
8. The Denial prevents the Appellant from further delivering on the intentions made clear by the 

City of Saint Paul, the neighborhood, the local district and the billion plus dollar investment of 
Federal, State, County and City funds for re-development along the Green Line Corridor.  The 
Project, with 119 market-rate apartments and 11,000 square feet of retail, is fully compatible with 
intentions of the Raymond Avenue Station Area Plan (adopted as part of the Saint Paul 
Comprehensive Plan) in pursuit of transit-oriented mixed-use residential and commercial density.  
The Appellant is delivering on that plan with the apartments, “C&E Flats”, having opened on July 
1st and a new 5,000 square foot brewery and tap-room opening along Raymond Ave in October, 
2017.   

	
Based on the above, and the attached supporting information, the Denial should be overturned in favor of 
a grant of this Appeal. 
 
 
Very Truly Yours,  
 
 
 
Thomas M. Nelson 
Principal 
Attachments 
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